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ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Issue Date:  January 7, 2019 

Request for Proposals: Disaster Debris Clearance and Removal Services 

RFP No:  19-1006   

To:  Prospective Applicants 

This Addendum forms a part of the Request for Proposals and modifies the 

original Request only to the extent specifically noted below.  Failure to 

acknowledge this Addendum in the Request for Proposals submittal may subject 

the submitter to disqualification. 

This Addendum consists of 7 pages in total. 

Questions/Clarifications: 

1.   Question: What was the last event that impacted the County which 

required activation and performance by the County’s disaster debris 

management contractor? 

Answer: The last event which required activation and performance by 

the County’s disaster debris management contractor was on 12/12/2002, 

DR-1448.    

 

2.   Question:  How many cubic yards of debris was collected in that event? 

Answer:   This information is unavailable as those records are in 

storage. 

 

3.   Question:  Will this contract be used to perform services on state roads 

in lieu of the NC DOT performing those services? 

 Answer:     Yes, Catawba County has a Memorandum of Understanding 

with the NC DOT that states: 

  

 “During a State of Disaster or Imminent Threat of Disaster and/or a State of 

Emergency declared pursuant to Chapters 14 and 166A of the North 

Carolina General Statutes and upon determination of the Parties that it is 

desirable that County (Catawba County) be responsible for removal of 
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debris from the right of way of State System Roads, NCDOT shall issue to 

County a written Notice to Proceed with debris removal.” 

 

 Additionally: “County shall remove and dispose of (1) Eligible Storm Debris 

on all non-FHWA routes and (2) Eligible Storm Debris except woody debris 

and sand on FHWA routes.” 

 

4. Question:  If the answer to question 3 is yes, does the County and/or any 

of the municipalities covered under the agreement, have a pre-existing 

Memorandum of Understanding with NC DOT that authorizes them to 

perform debris removal services on state roads? 

 Answer:   Yes, the above-referenced Memorandum of Understanding 

has been in place since 3/2011. 

 

5. Question:  How many miles of public roads (State, County, and 

Municipal) are within the County? 

 Answer:   2006.60 miles  

 

6. Question:  How many miles of State roads are within the County and 

Municipalities? 

 Answer:    NC DOT roads = 204.3 miles 

   Interstate and US Highway = 108.07 miles 
   Other State Routes (Secondary Roads) = 976.25 miles 
   Non-State (Municipal) = 826.16 miles 

 

7. Question:  Regarding the evaluation of the pricing, does the County 

intend on adding up all unit price line items to get a total figure to compare 

against other proposer’s or will there be quantities assigned?  If quantities 

are going to be assigned, what will they be? 

 Answer:   There will not be quantities assigned to the unit price line 

items.  Cost will be evaluated by adding up all unit costs proposed per 

section and comparing against other proposer submissions.  

8. Question:  Regarding the evaluation of the hourly pricing Attachment B, 

how does the County intend on weighing the hourly line items?  Are 

quantities going to be assigned, if so what will they be? 

 Answer:   There will not be quantities assigned to hourly rate line items.  

Hourly Rate’s will be evaluated by adding up all rates to compare against 

other proposer submissions. 

9. Question: How will the hourly pricing schedule be weighted in 

comparison to the unit price schedule to split the pricing evaluation 

criteria? 
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 Answer:   The evaluation of Attachment A and Attachment B will be split 

evenly for a maximum weight of 40% of the total score.  

10. Question:  Will the CY or TON price hold the weight in the pricing 

evaluation?  Would the County consider removing the TON unit and leave 

CY price as is industry standard? 

Answer:  The County was advised to include both CY and TON for Section 

3 and 4 of Attachment A.  Both CY value and TON value will be evaluated 

in these sections. 

11. The required forms do not have an assigned section.  Are we to put them 

in Tab 10 Other Requirements? 

 Answer: The required forms are in addition to the Proposal 

Requirements listed in Sections 1 – 10.  You may include the completed 

Attachments A – J in Section 10, Other Requirements, or just attach at 

the end of the proposal response. 

12. Attachment G – Conflict of Interest has no signature line.  Do you want 

this attachment signed and submitted with the proposal? 

 Answer: Yes, on Page 4 of this Addendum, please see new Attachment 

G: Conflict of Interest with signature line added for acknowledgement.  

Please use this Attachment G when submitting your response. 

13. Can you provide the Solid Waste Management Disposal Fee Schedule for 

Catawba County? 

 Answer: Yes, please see Attachment K entitled Solid Waste 

Management Disposal Fee Schedule Fiscal Year 2018-2019.  
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ATTACHMENT G 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
The Board of Directors/Trustees or other governing persons, officers, employees or agents 

are to avoid any conflict of interest, even the appearance of a conflict of interest. The 

Organization’s Board of Directors/Trustees or other governing body, officers, staff and 
agents are obligated to always act in the best interest of the organization. This obligation 

requires that any Board member or other governing person, officer, employee or agent, in 

the performance of Organization duties, seek only the furtherance of the Organization 

mission. At all times, Board members or other governing persons, officers, employees or 

agents, are prohibited from using their job title, the Organization’s name or property, for 

private profit or benefit. 
 

A. The Board members or other governing persons, officers, employees, or agents of the 

Organization should neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary 

value from current or potential contractors/vendors, persons receiving benefits from the 

Organization or persons who may benefit from the actions of any Board member or other 
governing person, officer, employee or agent. This is not intended to preclude bona-fide 

Organization fund raising activities. 

 

B. A Board or other governing body member may, with the approval of Board or other 

governing body, receive honoraria for lectures and other such activities while not acting 

in any official capacity for the Organization. Officers may, with the approval of the Board 
or other governing body, receive honoraria for lectures and other such activities while on 

personal days, compensatory time, annual leave, or leave without pay. Employees may, 

with the prior written approval of their supervisor, receive honoraria for lectures and 

other such activities while on personal days, compensatory time, annual leave, or leave 

without pay. If a Board or other governing body member, officer, employee or agent is 

acting in any official capacity, honoraria received in connection with activities relating to 
the Organization are to be paid to the Organization. 

 

 

C. No Board member or other governing person, officer, employee, or agent of the 

Organization shall participate in the selection, award, or administration of a purchase or 
contract with a vendor where, to his knowledge, any of the following has a financial 

interest in that purchase or contract:  

 1. The Board member or other governing person, officer, employee, or agent;  

2. Any member of their family by whole or half blood, step or personal relationship or 

relative-in-law;  

3. An organization in which any of the above is an officer, director, or employee;  
4. A person or organization with whom any of the above individuals is negotiating or 

has any arrangement concerning prospective employment or contracts.  

 

D. Duty to Disclosure – Any conflict of interest, potential conflict of interest, or the 

appearance of a conflict of interest is to be reported to the Board or other governing body 
or one’s supervisor immediately.  

 

E. Board Action – When a conflict of interest is relevant to a matter requiring action by 

the Board of Directors/Trustees or other governing body, the Board member or other 

governing person, officer, employee, or agent (person(s)) must disclose the existence of 

the conflict of interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the 
Board and members of committees with governing board delegated powers considering 

the possible conflict of interest. After disclosure of all material facts, and after any 

discussion with the person, he/she shall leave the governing board or committee meeting 

while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The 

remaining board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists. In 
addition, the person(s) shall not participate in the final deliberation or decision regarding 
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the matter under consideration and shall leave the meeting during the discussion of and 

vote of the Board of Directors/Trustees or other governing body.  

 
F. Violations of the Conflict of Interest Policy – If the Board of Directors/Trustees or other 

governing body has reasonable cause to believe a member, officer, employee or agent has 

failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the person of the 

basis for such belief and afford the person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure 

to disclose. If, after hearing the person’s response and after making further investigation 

as warranted by the circumstances, the Board of Directors/Trustees or other governing 
body determines the member, officer, employee or agent has failed to disclose an actual 

or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action. 

 

 

G. Record of Conflict – The minutes of the governing board and all committees with board 
delegated powers shall contain:  

 1. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have an actual 

or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the conflict of interest, any action taken 

to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the governing boards or 

committee’s decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.  

 2. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to 
the transaction or arrangement that presents a possible conflict of interest, the content 

of the discussion, including any alternatives to the transaction or arrangement, and a 

record of any votes taken in connection with the proceedings.  

 

 
___________________________________________  

Signature of Contractor’s Authorized Official 

 

 
__________________________________________  

Name and Title of Contractor’s Authorized Official  

 

 

___________________________  

Date 
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ATTACHMENT K 
 

CATAWBA COUNTY 

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DISPOSAL 
FEE SCHEDULE FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 

 
Solid Waste Management Disposal  
(Fees include $2 Solid Waste State Disposal Tax where applicable)  

 

Sanitary Landfill hours of operations are 8:00 am to 4:00 pm, Monday – Friday, 8:00 am 

– 11:30 am, Saturday, Closed Sunday  

Municipal Solid Waste ($16 minimum) .............................................................$35.00 per ton  

Dead Animals...................................................................................................$35.00 per ton 
Municipal Water & Wastewater Sludge meeting Paint Filter Liquids Test ......... $101.00 per ton  

 

100% Industrial Wood Waste ($16.00 minimum)  

Furniture Wood, glued, stained, etc..................................................................$35.00 per ton 

Painted or treated.............................................................................................$35.00 per ton 
Chipboard, pressboard, plywood ......................................................... ............$35.00 per ton 

The County’s State Permit does not allow wood waste from industries to be disposed of in the 

construction & demolition landfill.  

 

Other Wood Waste ($6.00 minimum)  

Saw Dust..........................................................................................................$12.00 per ton 
Chipped wood waste (no less than 2” and no more than 5” in diameter. Must be pre-approved 

as nonhazardous .............................................................................................$12.00 per ton  

 

Any Waste Contaminated with more than ($45.00 minimum)  

10% Cardboard (from industrial entities only) ..................................................$92.00 per ton 
20% Springs.....................................................................................................$92.00 per ton 

50% Foam Rubber............................................................................................$92.00 per ton 

Wire or cable over 4 ft.......................................................................................$92.00 per ton 

Bulky items not easily compacted.....................................................................$92.00 per ton  

 

Banned Materials Removal and Handling Fee  
Applies to each load that contains any materials banned by North Carolina State Law or Solid 

Waste Management Rules, current and future .................................................$100 per load  

 

Friable Asbestos ($15.00 minimum)  

State regulations requires friable asbestos to be covered with soil requiring extra landfill space; 
therefore, the fee will be....................................................................................$122.00 per ton  

 

Construction & Demolition Landfill and Grinding Area hours of operations are 7:00 am to 

4:30 pm, Monday – Friday, 8:00 am to 11:30 am, Saturday, Closed Sunday.  
Definitions  

-  Demolition debris - waste produced from the demolition of a structure (house, building, 
etc. containing no personal contents).  

-  Construction debris - waste produced during the construction of a structure (house, 

building, deck, etc.).  

-  Natural Wood – is wood that has not been processed in any form. Wood that is not 

chipboard, creosote, glued, painted, stained, treated, plywood, pressboard, etc. This is 
defined based on State regulation. 

 

Construction & Demolition Landfill ($11.00 minimum)  

Lumber over 8 feet in length ..............................................................................$25.00 per ton 

Painted, treated or creosote wood.......................................................................$25.00 per ton 

Chipboard, pressboard, plywood .......................................................................$25.00 per ton 
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Brick, block, or concrete that is painted or has reinforcement material and/or contaminated 

with other waste ................................................................................................$25.00 per ton 

Drywall...............................................................................................................$25.00 per ton 

Roofing/Shingles (non-recyclable).......................................................................$25.00 per ton 

Non-Friable Asbestos containing transit siding, vinyl floor tiles, asphalt roofing shingles 

...........................................................................................................................$25.00 per ton 

Clean natural furniture wood waste for grinding (containing no glue, stain, chipboard, 

pressboard, plywood, etc)............................................................$8.00 per ton; $4.00 minimum  

Mobile Homes (Arrangements must be made prior to acceptance at Landfill) 

.......................................................................................................................$0.27 square foot  

 

Extra Service Provided ($8.00 minimum)  

Labor to de-bag yard waste (use clear bags) ........................................................$17.00 per ton  

 

State-Banned Landfill Materials  

Asphalt ................................................................................................................ No Charge 

Brick, block, concrete not painted and w/o reinforcement, less than 6 inch, and separated from 

other waste .......................................................................................................... No Charge 

Clean, natural, uncontaminated wood pallets........................................................ No Charge 

Paint (liquid) ......................................................................................................... No Charge 

Electronics and televisions..................................................................................... No Charge 

Loose grass and leaves (de-bagged) .........................................................................No Charge 

Natural lumber, less than 8 feet in length .............................................................. No Charge  

 

Ground and/or Non-ground Brush, Limbs, Trees, Etc.  

Brush, Limbs, and Trees (Grindable)..................................................................$17.00 per ton 

(Brush, limbs, and trees must be kept separated from roots, stumps, and grubbing for 

recycling purposes)  

 

Grubbing, Roots, and Stumps (Non-grindable) ………………………………………...$25.00 per ton 

(Brush, limbs, and/or trees contaminated with abrasive material, dirt, roots, soil, or other 

material will not be considered grindable and will be charged the non-grindable price per ton)  

 

If a load of waste is unloaded at the grinders and it has other materials mixed in that makes 

the load non-grindable, the per ton charge for the material, state fees, and the banned 

materials handling fee will be applied. This fee is for employee and equipment time to transport 

the material to the Landfill to be buried.  

 

Mulch and Compost  

Mulch (3-yard scoop/bucket) ............................................................. $10.00 or $10.00 per ton 

Compost (3-yard scoop/bucket) ................................................................... $30 or $25 per ton   

(customers may choose to pay per 3 yard scoop/bucket or have their vehicle weighed) 

 

Scrap Tires (cost of vendor contract)  

Tires without proper documentation, that have been buried, stockpiled prior to January 1, 

1994, and from Out of State......................... cost of vendor contract (currently $90.00 per ton)  

 

Note: If the Sanitary Landfill is used when the Construction and Demolition Landfill is 

closed, users will be charged Sanitary Landfill fees. 

 

 


